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The cover of the 2006/2007 Annual Report shows a photograph of the floating sphere gifted to the
community of Bunbury, to celebrate the Board’s 100th year of service (1906-2006).
The information plaques on the sphere state the following:
Water That On Which All Life Turns
Presented to the Community of Bunbury
By
Aqwest Bunbury Water Board
to Celebrate the Board's 100th Year of Service
1906-2006
Diana Phillips
Chairman
Aqwest Bunbury Water Board

David Smith
Mayor
City of Bunbury

This floating stone was a gift to the community
of Bunbury from Aqwest Bunbury Water Board.
The stone celebrates the Board's 100th year of service to Bunbury
and the close long-term working relationship between
the Board and the City of Bunbury.

Richard Williamson crafted the stone.
The location was chosen because it is less
than 100 metres from the site of Bunbury's first public well,
excavated through basalt more than 100 years ago.

The rotating 1500 mm diameter green sphere
(a combination of Brecciated Marble and Granulitic Schist)
sits on a raised base of black granite surrounded by a porous
pavement of local basalt. The sphere rotates on a film
of pressurised water and its direction can be
changed by the touch of a hand.

The colour and wave pattern of the sphere promotes
the water theme and reflects Aqwest's logo and corporate
colours. The sphere promotes water conservation as it uses very
little water and even re-cycles the rainfall that falls upon
it. The sphere and base weigh over 10 tonnes.

Cover photo by Paul Verhagen 2007
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AIM
To achieve on-going success in the water
industry based on service excellence and
compliance to statutory requirements
ROLE
Provide sustainable, high quality water
services at minimum long term cost.
“BUNBURY WATER BOARD”

AQWEST

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Hon. John Kobelke

MLA

MINISTER FOR WATER RESOURCES.

On behalf of the Board of Management and in accordance
with Section 61 of the Financial Management Act 2006, we
have pleasure in submitting for your information and
presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report of AQWEST
- Bunbury Water Board for the financial year ended 30
June 2007.
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with
the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006.
In the financial administration of AQWEST - Bunbury
Water Board we have complied with the requirements of
the Financial Management Act 2006 and every other
written law and exercised controls which provide
reasonable assurance that the receipt and expenditure of
moneys and the acquisitions and disposal of property and
incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with
legislative provisions.
At the date of signing we are not aware of any
circumstances which would render the particulars in this
statement misleading or inaccurate.
This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of
the Board.

D M PHILLIPS

T M HALL

Chairman

Board Member

BUNBURY, 4 JULY 2007

AQWEST 2006-07 ANNUAL REPORT - PAGE 3

B D GRANVILLE
Chief Finance Officer

INTRODUCTION
The site of the police station in Wittenoom Street was
the birthplace of AQWEST when hand drawn carts
were filled from a well to sustain the small but
bustling port-side community of Bunbury.

managed by a Board of community members.

From the beginning the Bunbury Water Board was a
locally run, not for profit organisation with a focus on
serving the community.

AQWEST is keen to consider options to expand its
distribution.

One hundred years later that culture hasn’t changed
and is still central to all AQWEST does today. It is
about local people servicing the needs of their
community.
The Bunbury Water Board was controlled by local
government until 1996 when it became an
independent authority under the Water Services Coordination Act of 1995.
AQWEST is one of two independent water supply
authorities operating in Western Australia. It is

AQWEST is the trading name for the Bunbury Water
Board, which supplies drinking water to homes and
businesses in Bunbury.

Expansion depends heavily on changes to Government
legislation.
The organisation has earned a reputation for achieving
high customer satisfaction standards.
AQWEST has access to a reliable, high quality water
resource and is supported by modern treatment plants,
storage facilities and network capability. It has sound,
long-term capacity to invest in new facilities as well as
maintain and upgrade its existing facilities.

GUIDING VALUES
l

A provider of high quality service

l

Customer and community focused

l

Recognised for leadership and innovation

l

Committed to supporting staff

l

Committed to providing a safe workplace

l

Ethical and has integrity

l

Accountable (open and transparent)

l

Able to provide a safe and sustainable supply

BOARD MEMBERS
BACK L-R
Stan Liaros, June 2004 - 31 May 2010
Terry Spice, August 2005 - 31 May 2008
Tom Hall, July 2003 - 31 May 2009
David Smith, June 2004 - 31 May 2010
FRONT L-R
Merrilynn Walker, July 2003 - 31 May 2009
Diana Phillips (Chairman) 1 December 2001 - 31 May 2008
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
AQWEST has this year
undertaken some of the
biggest capital works
programs since its inception
in 1906.
These projects involved
extending our water main
out along the Harris Road
area. Construction also
commenced on a large
main to transfer water from
the Tech reservoir to the
Roberts Crescent reservoir.
This will allow better
service to the upper end of
Bunbury which is becoming
more densely populated as
current development
occurs. In conjunction with this and to enable us to
transfer this water a pumping station will be built at the
Tech reservoir. Both of these projects are large
engineering feats for AQWEST.
Along with these projects AQWEST has undertaken some
significant maintenance and repairs such as replacing the
purlins at Tech reservoir, a project which necessitated the
use of cranes to lift the new purlins over the top of the
reservoir and lower them down onto the supports.
During this work a spontaneous safety inspection was
completed by WorkSafe who gave a clean bill of health
for our work practices and planning which was very
pleasing.
On top of these projects we have several very active
internal committees that consistently work for AQWEST's
betterment.
The first of these is our newly formed Water Quality
Committee which specifically addresses the water quality
issues in Bunbury's supply. Water is pumped up from the
Yarragadee and contains manganese and iron.
The Water Quality Committee addresses these and other
complex chemical issues to ensure compliance with
Australian Drinking Water Guidelines.
The Water Quality Committee guides the implementation
of new techniques and testing regimes. AQWEST now has
its own laboratory where many of the routine water
quality tests can be completed.
This allows water quality to be closely monitored with
any necessary adjustments to the treatment process being
promptly made.
We also have a very active IT committee which is looking
to update our systems. We have moved into the
automation of water production so that the requirement
to have officers visiting the plants overnight and at
weekends to start, stop and regulate equipment is
greatly reduced. Automated controls allow the
regulation production by remote means. As well, much
of AQWEST's financial accounting centres around our
asset controls including their valuations and revaluations.
There are attempts to link our various computer software
programs to better enable all systems to exchange and
incorporate information. This is exciting and complicated

and the work of the IT committee is greatly valued.
AQWEST also has an extremely active risk management
committee that is developing computer based programs to
continually monitor risk factors relating to AQWEST.
Treatment plans are developed as required and a Pandemic
Influenza Plan was developed during the year.
Overseeing all this is the Audit committee that actively
surveys not only the financial aspect of AQWEST but also
the Risk, Safety, IT and Water Quality Committee work.
AQWEST is a vibrant and active organisation with a
carefully planned view of the future that has given us goals
and directions to cope with the increasing population and
increased industry in the Bunbury area.
AQWEST is responsible and responsive to its customers.
An example of an issue which AQWEST is currently looking
into is the State Government's introduction of 2 day a week
water restrictions and the affect they will have on long
term sustainability and revenue projections.
This issue is currently being heavily promoted in the media.
The implementation date is 1 October 2007.
I am proud of all that we have achieved at AQWEST this
year and I look forward with confidence and enthusiasm to
what 2008 holds.
I thank the executive team which was entirely newly
appointed in November 2006 and which has performed
exceptionally well and moulded the organisation into a
happy team that looks heartily with the Board into the
future. I also thank my fellow Board members for their
time and considerable effort in committing themselves to
AQWEST's health and well being.
Well done AQWEST.
Diana Phillips
Chair

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS REPORT
Staffing
Following the completion of
standard recruitment
processes, appointments were
made to all three Executive
Staff positions in 2006/2007.
The appointees bring with
them significant water
industry experience and the
performance of the Executive
Team will further develop
with continued exposure in
their new roles.
Especially in the first six to
eight months of the year,
AQWEST again had relatively
high levels of staff turnover.
In part this reflects a very competitive labour market in
Western Australia.
In October 2006, the Board engaged a consultancy to
complete a staff profiling and early intervention
assessment of all staff. The initial recommendations of this
three(3) year project are currently being implemented.
Ten(10) staff fulfilled the requirements for Certificate II in
Water Operations in accordance with the National training
curriculum. The endeavour shown by these staff is highly
commendable.
Mr Geoff Oddy, Mr Jack McDonald and Mr Jim Locke
retired in 2006/2007 after long periods of service. Their
contribution to the organisation is very highly regarded.

Regulation and Water Industry Planning
The opportunity provided to AQWEST to participate in the
formulation of the State and South West Water Plans is
welcomed.
AQWEST has attended regular meetings of the
Interdepartmental Co-ordinating Committee which is
progressing law reform in the Western Australia water
industry. The Department of Water convenes this
Committee which will ultimately produce replacement
legislation for the Water Boards Act 1904. The proposed
changes have been extensively reviewed by the Board of
Management and current drafts are viewed favourably at
this point in time.
The Board appreciates the opportunity to attend and
participate at monthly meetings of the State Water
Council.

Public Relations
The Board celebrated it's 100th year of service to the
Bunbury community on the 6th January 2006 with special
events continuing throughout the 2006 calendar year. The
celebrations culminated with the release in November 2006
of "Liquid Gold", a History Book by author Barb Clews. Other
major events included a Wall Of Honour for those staff who
achieve twenty(20) or more years of service and the gift of a
floating sphere to the Bunbury community.
Significant Capital Works
During the financial year the Board upgraded and extended
a large diameter water main along Harris Road to Golding
Crescent in the Shire of Dardanup. The extension into this
area accommodates the significant expected light industrial
growth.
Approval was received from the Minister for Water Resources
to purchase three(3) properties from the City of Bunbury for
a total cost of $3,659,000. Their purchase ensures the long
term security of significant land assets.
Commitments have been made to proceed with the City
WaterLink pipe line and Pump Station project at a total cost
of almost $7 million. These projects provide long term
security for the City's water supplies.
In conclusion, I would like to thank all staff for their valuable
contributions in 2006/2007 and thank you to the Board of
Management for the faith and support they have shown to
the new Executive Team.
Brad Bevis
Chief Executive Officer.
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Corporate Planning
The Board has moved to a higher level in its corporate
planning processes by completing a formal Strategic
Development Plan(SDP) and Statement of Corporate
Intent(SCI).
A Five Year Information Technology Strategic Plan was also
completed during the year which has highlighted
numerous areas for improvement.
The Board continues to benchmark key industry indicators
with members of the Victorian Water Association and
compares favourably in all areas.
The requirements of the National Water Initiative(NWI)
present a challenge for all water utilities. The assistance
and guidance of the Economic Regulation Authority in this
area is appreciated.

Customer Services
The Board's Customer Service Charter was reviewed during
the year in a process that invited customer participation. The
Charter was modified as required and approved by the
Economic Regulation Authority as required by the Board's
Operating Licence.
The 2007 Customer Survey provides numerous Key
Performance Indicators. In terms of overall satisfaction,
93.5% of customers were happy with AQWEST's overall
services, and 86.7% indicated they were satisfied with their
tap water service. There was a lower proportion of
dissatisfied customers than the previous two years. The main
issue raised by the dissatisfied customers was the smell and
taste of the water, which is similar to 2005 and 2006. Only
35.6% of customers believe that AQWEST is planning
effectively for the future, 14.8% believe AQWEST is not, and
almost half(49.6%) are neutral or don't know. Whilst the
Survey indicates that the debate on the use of the
Yarragadee aquifer has influenced the result, informing our
customers in regards to AQWEST's long term plans needs to
be a priority in forthcoming years.
The establishment of a Water Quality Committee in
2006/2007 formalises an ongoing commitment in this key
area. The Committee's composition includes representation
from the Health Department of WA, City of Bunbury and the
Board's consultant's, Hunter Water Australia as well as key
AQWEST staff and managers.
Discusssions have been ongoing with the Water Corporation
in regards to both organisations contributing to and
constructing the necessary infrastructure to supply each other
with emergency supplies and potential bulk water supplies.

REPORT ON OPERATIONS
OPERATIONS
AQWEST provides potable water services to the City of
Bunbury.

The Board again maintained a comprehensive water
conservation program in 2006/07.
The program included:
radio campaign on the three local radio
stations from November 2006 through to March 2007
inclusive.

Results for the 2006/2007 financial year show that
AQWEST once again performed its role at a high level.

l Intensive

There were no changes to performance indicator
targets in 2006/2007.

l Weekly

There has been no other change in the Government's
desired outcomes for outputs or activity relating to
AQWEST operations, nor has there been any change in
Government policy in relation to these outputs or
activities in the past year.

l

Operating licence
AQWEST'S operating licence expires in 2022.
AQWEST'S Performance Indicators are closely aligned to
the requirements of the operating licence. This ensures
that the results from the Performance Indicators are
particularly relevant to the business operation.
Growth and consumption
Consumption statistics for 2006/2007 were similar to
2005/2006 as demonstrated below.

Year

newspaper article where a comparison is
provided of Actual vs Target consumption. Water saving
tips are incorporated into the article.
Direct mail pamphlets promoting the “Save Water, Save
Money” theme.

FINANCE
AQWEST'S objectives in charging for services is to
maintain a system which is fair, simple to understand and
administer, while promoting the efficient use of the
water resource.
Apart from The Minister for Water Resources approving
Performance Indicator details, there were no Ministerial
directives relevant to the setting and achievement of
Ministerial objectives or to investing and financing
activities.

REVENUE

Consumption (kL)
Residential

Total (kL)
Non-residential Consumption

2003

3,663,623

1,603,460

5,267,083

2004

4,217,648

1,694,962

5,912,610

2005

4,221,466

1,682,983

5,904,449

2006

4,110,477

1,710,703

5,821,180

2007

4,296,053

1,739,936

6,035,989

Other 5%

Developers
Contributions 9%
Interest Received 13%

Water Charges 39%
Rates & Supply Fees 34%

EXPENDITURE
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Capital Works 15%
Depreciation 19%
Cost of Services 37%
Administration and
Other Expenditure 29%

REPORT ON OPERATIONS
PRODUCTION
There was a slight increase in the production of water in
2006/2007 as shown in the table below.

Year

Production (kL)

2003

6,407,652

2004

6,846,789

2005

6,594,681

2006

6,502,829

2007

6,766,557

Capital works program
The total value of the 2006/2007 capital works program
was $3.8 million.
The main works undertaken were:
300mm main to Harris Road development
$1,111,239
Install City Water Link main and
pump station (phase 1)
$729,521
Replace rusted purlins at Roberts Reservoir
$280,785
Automation of various treatment plants
$200,893
The graph below illustrates the levels of capital works
expenditure over the last five years.
3.8
3.6
3.4

Consumption charges
RESIDENTIAL
The cost per kilolitre of water during the 2006/2007
financial year increased by approximately 3%. The
current residential consumption charges are:
Consumption
kilolitres
0 to 150kl

Cost per kilolitre
2004

2005

2006

2007

$0.38

$0.38

$0.39

$0.40

151 to 350kL

$0.66

$0.67

$0.69

$0.71

351 to 500kl

$0.97

$0.98

$1.00

$1.03

501 to 700kl

$1.26

$1.28

$1.31

$1.35

701 to 1000kl

$1.50

$1.53

$1.57

$1.62

> 1000kl

$2.18

$2.22

$2.28

$2.36

NON RESIDENTIAL
A revised pricing regime was introduced in the nonresidential sector on 1 July, 2005. The new pricing regime
introduced the following changes to the way in which
water charges are levied across the non-residential sector.
1. Phasing out of the GRV (Gross Rental Value) method of
rating properties over a 5 year period starting with an
80% charge in 2005/06 reducing by 20% increments to
be nil in 2009/10.
2. Phasing in of a meter charge based on the meter size.
The base charge being $345 for a 20mm meter. Charges
for other meters are based on the volumetric capacity of
the meter as shown in the table below.

3.2
3.0

2.6
2.4
2.2

$ million

2.0
1.8
1.6
1.4
1.2
1.0
0.8
0.6
0.4
0.2
2002/2003

2003/2004

2004/2005

FINANCIAL YEAR

2005/2006 2006/2007

Meter Size Index
1.00
1.56
4.00
6.25
16.00
25.00
56.25

Charge
345.00
538.20
1380.00
2156.25
5520.00
8652.00
19,406.25
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Meter Size
20
25
40
50
80
100
150

2.8

REPORT ON OPERATIONS
3. New consumption charges were phased in based on the
percentages shown in the table below. The base charge
for 2006/07 was $0.74 per kL up to 1000 kL and $1.09 per
kL thereafter. The water allowances based on Gross
Rental Values were discontinued from 1 July, 2005.

Consumption charges - phasing in %
Year
2005/06
2006/07
2007/08
2008/09
2009/10

% of base charge
50%
65%
75%
85%
100%

AQWEST has adopted policies, guidelines and processes
supporting the public sector standards in human resource
management.
All relevant documentation is contained within the
Human Resources Manual that is readily available in both
electronic and hard copy to all staff.
Executive officers and works supervisors are responsible
for compliance with public sector standards and ethical
codes. Duty statements for each employment position
and the performance planning processes are complete for
all categories of staff.

Pricing and related information was published in the
Government Gazette on 18 August, 2006.

The CEO is directly involved in signing off all transactions
in recruitment, selection, discipline and performance
planning.

The Electoral Act 1907 Section 175ZE

It was considered appropriate, considering the size of the
organisation, for the CEO to carry out the self-assessment
of the application of the public sector standards.

In accordance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907,
AQWEST incurred the following expenditure in
advertising, market research, polling, direct mail and
media advertising:
1. Total expenditure for 2006/2007 was $81,685.
2. Expenditure was incurred in the following areas:
Media Advertising organisations
Rounded
Advance Press Pty Ltd
$24,105
SW Printing
$10,457
Rural Press
$9,035
Bunbury Print
$8,579
Radio West
$6,850
Dynamic Print
$4,461
Express Print
$3,230
Market Force
$2,836
Easy Listening Radio
$1,032
Red Wave Media Pty Ltd
$528
The Local Link
$342
TOTAL
$71,455
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH PUBLIC SECTOR STANDARDS

Market Advertising Organisations
Strahan Research
Advertising Agencies
Polling Organisations
Direct Mail Organisations
TOTAL

Rounded
$10,230
$10,230

An annual, independently conducted attitudinal survey
using Australian Quality Awards Criteria is conducted to
assess staff attitudes in the conduct of AQWEST'S
activities.
A Code of Conduct was adopted in September 1998
following a staff consultation process. The Code is
generally reviewed annually but was not reviewed in
2006/2007.
A comprehensive induction process applies to all new
staff.
Breach of Standard Applications 2006/2007.
Number lodged
Breaches found
Multiple breaches
Applications under review
Material breaches
Non-material breaches

B. Bevis - Chief Executive Officer
1 July 2007

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

REPORT ON OPERATIONS
CORPORATE STRUCTURE
BOARD
CHAIRMAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
MANAGER WATER SERVICES
l

Technical Officer
Asset Management Officer
l Drafting Officer
l Operations Officer
l Works Supervisors
l Customer Services Officer
l Supply Officer
l Water Treatment Plant Operators
l Construction and Maintenance Staff
l

Accountant
Secretary
l Finance and Administration Officers
l Rating Officers
l Cashier
l Meter Reader
l
l

CORRUPTION PREVENTION
AQWEST is taking the following measures to prevent
corruption and misconduct.
l Promoting staff Code of Conduct
l Advising staff of notification procedures for dealing
with misconduct and corruption.
Number of employees
The number of employees by category in comparison with
the preceding financial year is shown below:

Staff category
Finance/Administration
Engineering
Operations
Total

Full time equivalents
2005/2006
2006/2007
(12 mths)
(12 mths)
14.02
13.17
4.88
4.64
14.47
15.27
33.37
33.08
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CUSTOMER GROUP OUTCOMES
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan
AQWEST - Bunbury Water Board is not required to
develop a Disability Access and Inclusion Plan. AQWEST
is cognisant with the six (6) desired outcomes of the
plan.
Equal Employment Opportunity Outcomes
A Draft copy of the Board’s Equal Employment
Opportunity and Diversity Management Plan for the
period 2007-2009 was submitted to the Office of Equal
Employment Opportunity for endorsement on 1 May
2007.
Record Keeping Plans
Refer to Page 15.
Equity and Diversity Plan
AQWEST - Bunbury Water Board has less than 50
employees and is therefore not required to provide
numerical performance objectives. The Board is aware
of the State Government’s Equity and Diversity Plan for
the Public Sector Workforce 2006-2009. The Board is
also aware that the State Government is committed to
developing an equitable and diverse public sector
workforce which is representative of the Western
Australian community at all levels of employment and
enables employees to combine work and family
responsibilities.

MANAGER FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

REPORT ON OPERATIONS
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TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
AQWEST has an induction process for all new employees,
and has ongoing specific training for staff.
Specific training is aimed at computer applications, manual
handling, use of machinery, first aid and chlorine safety
procedures.
Training is aimed at maintaining a skilled workforce, up to
date with industry changes, and ensuring safe work
practices.
AQWEST supports advanced external studies.
Occupational Health and Safety/Risk Management
AQWEST, in its commitment to health and safety, actively
promotes employee participation. In January 2005, the
Board appointed a Safety Training and Compliance Officer
in order to provide an increased focus on safety and
related issues.
Monthly safety meetings focus on developing responses to
safety issues that may affect staff and issues that may have
an impact on the public.
First aid training and refresher courses combined with
videos, books and pamphlets encourage staff to maintain
safe work practices. Appropriate voluntary immunisation
programs are available to all employees.
During the year the relevant staff conducted drills to test
response and procedures according to the chlorine
emergency response and emergency evacuation plans.
AQWEST'S Occupational, Health and Safety Program is
independently assessed in accordance with the Worksafe
WA guidelines. The audit is completed every second year
to measure and guide improvements in AQWEST'S safety
program. The audit was last completed in March 2007 with
AQWEST achieving an overall 83% rating.
The composition of AQWEST’s Risk Management
Committee is the Chief Executive Officer, Manager Finance
& Administration, Manager Water Services, Board
Chairman and one Board Member.
The committee meets at least 6 times per year.
During 2006/2007 the Risk Management Committee
developed or reviewed:
l Risk Management Committee terms of reference
l Risk Management Plan
l Risk Register

Employee relations
AQWEST conducted its eleventh annual survey of staff
attitudes, designed to compare organisational
performance against the Australian Quality Award criteria.

Results of the survey are as follows:
Australian Quality
Award Category
Customer
Focus
Information
& Analysis
Organisational
Performance
Leadership
Processes,
Products & Services
Individual
Employment
Strategy, Policy
& Planning
Organisation as
an Employer
Workplace as part
of the Organisation

2007 2006
2005
2004
Aust.
Survey Survey Survey Survey ave
3.88
4.06
3.98
4.21
3.42
3.82

3.58

3.90

4.03

3.02

3.55

3.42

3.48

3.67

3.53

3.87
3.79

3.54
3.51

3.57
3.80

3.71
3.88

2.99
3.23

3.62

3.33

3.40

3.59

3.06

3.74

3.38

3.67

2.79

2.80

3.67

3.45

3.59

2.88

2.89

3.28

3.15

3.21

2.75

2.76

Results were significantly above the Australian averages.

REPORT ON OPERATIONS
COMMUNICATIONS
Awareness of communication
Almost two thirds of customers were aware of AQWEST’s
ON TAP newsletter (64.4%) and information pamphlets
(63.2%), but just under a third were aware of the website
(31.5%) and about one in five were aware of AQWEST’s
Customer Service Charter Summary (20.3%).
The Charter Summary is again being distributed to all
customers in September 2007.
Informing the public
77.7% of customers agree that AQWEST does a good job of
informing the public about its services, which is a consistent
result over the last five years. There were 4.1% who
disagreed with that. Half of those who disagreed said that
they had not received any/enough information about
AQWEST and 18.8% said that they did not receive enough
information about service interruptions.
More than five out of ten (55.7%) customers generally did
not want more information about AQWEST, but of the
44.3% who did, the main request was for information on
water quality and conservation advice. The desire for
conservation advice has risen in each of the years since 2005.
PLANNING FOR THE FUTURE
Planning for the future
35.6% of customers believe that AQWEST is planning
effectively for the future, 14.8% believe they are not, and
almost half (49.6%) are neutral or don’t know.
The proportion of respondents who believe AQWEST is
planning for the future has declined each year since 2003. In
addition, those who disagree that they are planning
effectively has also risen over the last five years.
Respondents who believe that AQWEST is not planning
efffectively mainly said that they don’t support the use of
the Yarragadee aquifer for Perth consumers (36.2%) and
don’t believe AQWEST has plans for the future.
Water conservation
63.3% of respondents believe AQWEST is actively involved in
water conservation, 10% believe they are not, while 26.7%
were unsure or don’t know. The main reasons given by
those who disagreed were that AQWEST:
l doesn’t publicly promote water conservation
l doesn’t direct business and Government into water
conservation
l needs stronger water saving guidelines

Results of the latest survey are:
Item
Overall safisfaction
with AQWEST
Satisfaction with tap water
No interruption to supply
Water safe to drink
Water supply is of an
acceptable quality
AQWEST is planning
for the future
AQWEST charges fairly
for its services

2007

2006

2005

2004

93%
87%
89%
90%

90%
82%
87%
84%

90%
83%
62%
85%

81%
81%
69%
84%

84%

80%

81%

75%

36%

37%

45%

52%

77%

69%

75%

84%
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CUSTOMER SURVEY
AQWEST delivers its services with a clear customer focus and
a major objective to achieve a minimum of 85% approval
rating.
In the 2006/2007 customer satisfaction survey an overall
satisfaction rating of 93% was achieved.
Again, the 2007 Survey has provided valuable feedback on
AQWEST’s performance. Whilst the majority of issues have
been previously identified in prior surveys, the onus remains
with AQWEST to continually improve.
THE CUSTOMER SURVEY REVEALED THE FOLLOWING:
SERVICE
Overall satisfaction
93.5% of customers were happy with AQWEST’s overall
services, and 86.7% indicated they were satisfied with their
tap water service. There is a lower proportion of dissatisfied
customers than the previous two years, and the main issue
raised by the small number of dissatisfied customers was the
smell and taste of the water, which is similar to 2005 and
2006.
Customer contact
90.1% of customers who had contacted AQWEST in the past
12 months were satisfied with the response received, an
improvement over 2006, but similar to the 2005 and 2004
survey results. The primary reason given by the 7.0% of
respondents who were dissatisfied was that the problem
they contacted AQWEST about remains unresolved.
Service interruptions or problems
86.9% of customers had not experienced any problems with
water quality, and 87.6% had not experienced any problems
with pressure in the last 12 months.
In both instances, this is the best result in the past five years.
89.4% of customers had not experienced unexpected
interruptions to their service, and 48.4% had not
experienced planned interruptions in the past 12 months. Of
those who had experienced planned interruptions, 99.5%
were contacted prior to the interruption.
Charges
77.4% of customers believe that AQWEST charges fairly for
its services. The 8.1% of respondents who believe that
AQWEST does not charge fairly were mainly concerned with
high rates and not getting value for money.
TAP WATER SERVICE
Quality
86.7% of customers are satisfied with the quality of the tap
service from AQWEST. The 7.3% of respondents who were
dissatisfied were concerned about taste and smell of the
water and the chlorine in the water, which have been the
main concerns since 2005.
Drinkability
89.7% of respondents believe AQWEST drinking water is
safe to drink. Only 4.8% think it is not safe. The main
concerns of those who think it is not safe are the chlorine
content and the taste and smell of the water which is
consistent with the findings since 2005.

REPORT ON OPERATIONS
Complaint statistics for the period
1 July 2006 to 30 June 2007 were as follows:
CATEGORY
Water quality
Pressure or flow
Accounts
Other
TOTAL
COMPLAINT RESOLUTION
Resolved by routine business procedures
Unresolved
TOTAL
WRITTEN COMPLAINTS
Total number of written complaints
Number of written complaints resolved in 21 days
Number of written complaints resolved in more
than 21 days
Number of complaints outstanding at 30 June 2007

Community Services
AQWEST provides a rebate to owners and tenants who
are holders of a Pensioner or a Senior Card.
94
47
1
0
142
142
0
142
4
1
3
0

Customer Complaints
AQWEST recognises that supplying our customers with a
high quality uninterrupted water supply is critical.
AQWEST operates a 24-hour emergency contact service as
required by our Operating Licence. Customers are notified
within one hour of the action to be taken.
Our customers are entitled to express valid concerns and
have their query responded to in a timely, professional
manner with the least amount of inconvenience where
possible. Whether complaints are financial or relating to
water supply, customers are kept fully informed on the
progress of their complaint until a solution is found.

The rebate applies to water supply fees and water
consumption and is assessed on the following basis:
Supply Fee
Pensioners
Seniors

50% rebate
25% rebate

Water Consumption
Pensioners
50% up to 350kl
Seniors
50% up to 150kl
Customer focus
The following documents are usually held by AQWEST
Bunbury Water Board and are available free of charge to
our customers upon request:
Customer Charter
Annual Report
Information on Headworks contributions
Information Sheet regarding disputes
Newsletters
Strategic Development Plan
Water Conservation Campaign documents
By-laws
Equity Access
AQWEST Bunbury Water Board will provide a general
right of access to other documents and records in
accordance with the Freedom of Information Act 1992
and the guidelines of our Policy No.5.10.
AQWEST's procedure for giving members of the public
access to documents is as follows:
Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act 1992.
Board Policy 5.10 titled "Freedom of Information".
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Initial enquiries can be made to the Board's Manager of
Finance and Administration who performs the role of
"Freedom of Information Coordinator".

REPORT ON OPERATIONS
Recordkeeping Plans
AQWEST’s Recordkeeping Plan was approved for a
period of three (3) years by the State Records
Commission on the 18th June, 2007.
In accordance with Standard 2, Principle 6 of the State
Records Act 2000, AQWEST addresses key areas as
follows:
1. The efficiency and effectiveness of AQWEST’s
recordkeeping system is evaluated not less
than once every five (5) years
a) TRIM software subject to annual review to
determine whether it continues to meet required
business needs
b) Annual database integrity maintenance process
complete
c) Informal annual reviews of recordkeeping system
completed in recent years

3. Efficiency and Effectiveness of the Recordkeeping
Training Program is reviewed from time to time
The intention is to review the recordkeeping program
annually in conjunction with the individual employee
performance appraisal process.
This remains partially implemented.
4. AQWEST’s Induction Program
AQWEST’s Human Resources Manual has been
modified so that employee induction procedures
address roles and responsibilities in respect to
AQWEST’s recordkeeping plan. The induction program
addresses employee roles and responsibilities in
respect to AQWEST’s recordkeeping plan compliance
requirements.
5. Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003
The Board’s Public Interest Disclosure (PID) Officer is
the Chief Executive Officer.

d) Formal review of recordkeeping system at least once
every five years proposed. This will commence in
2007/2008
2. Recordkeeping Training Program
Informal training provided to new employees upon
commencement and to current employees if the
requirement is identified.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS
The goal is to create a positive relationship between
AQWEST and its customers.
The information-intensive approach to customers has
supported a significant reduction in the number of
customer complaints received during the annual mains
water flushing program. This year's information program
included media releases and advertising, mail drops, direct
contact with businesses and residents and personal contact
with businesses that rely heavily on water, like hospitals
and schools.
Customer Satisfaction Survey feedback showed customers
were appreciative of the personal and direct contact
approach.
AQWEST's communications strategy was also expanded
during the year to take into account its leak detection
program.
The mains leak detection program was aimed at
examining the integrity of AQWEST's pipeline systems. The
work had the added benefit of alerting residential
premises and businesses to potential leaks on private
property.
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AQWEST is committed to an open, consultative and
supportive relationship with its customers and the
community.
A range of communication channels are used including
media releases, direct mail campaigns, advertising,
corporate website, displays and direct customer contact.
Through these avenues AQWEST manages its
communication response on key issues including:
l Responsible water use
l Water quality
l Management of water resources
l Capital Works and maintenance programs
l Corporate achievements
The success of AQWEST's community relations effort is
measured through a questionnaire in the annual customer
satisfaction survey.
The 2007 survey showed over 78% of people believed
AQWEST adequately informed the public about its
services.
An area of increasing importance to the communication
strategy is direct customer contact. Procedures are in place
to communicate directly with customers likely to be
affected by works programs through letters, local signage,
local media and direct contact.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
MINISTER FOR WATER RESOURCES
CHAIRMAN
Mrs D M PHILLIPS
Mr D SMITH, Mr S LIAROS, Mr T SPICE
Mr T HALL, Mrs M WALKER

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr B G BEVIS

MANAGER WATER SERVICES
Mr G J HALLSWORTH
Water Quality
Water Supply
l Water Supply Design
l Water Resources Planning
l Water Resources Management
l Construction
l Surveying and Mapping
l Asset Information Systems

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER
Mr B D GRANVILLE
Financial Services
Management Accounting
l Financial Computing Services
l Customer Accounting
l Customer Services
l Debt Management
l Financial Budgeting
l Annual Reporting

Urban Development
Mechanical Services
l Electrical Services
l Asset Management
l Operations & Maintenance

l

l

l

l

l

l

Investment Control
Property Rating
l Water Supply Pricing
l National Tax Equivalent Regime
l Human Resources Management
l Public Relations
l Industrial Relations
l Financial Management
Act Compliance
l
l

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Performance Indicators - Certification Statement
INTRODUCTION
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In accordance with Section 69 of the Financial
Management Act 2006, the Board has developed key
performance indicators which enable assessment of the
efficiency and effectiveness with which organisational
performance and objectives are achieved.
Performance Indicators and associated levels of service
are under constant review to ensure that they remain
relevant and reflect both customer expectations and
regulatory requirements. In accordance with the
requirements of Treasurer's Instruction 904 our
performance information has been fully reviewed and
enhanced to relate actual output to meeting targets
(delivery), inputs to outputs (efficiency), and outputs to
outcomes (effectiveness).

We hereby certify that the Performance Indicators are
based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate
for assisting users to assess the performance of the
Bunbury Water Board and fairly represent the
performance of Bunbury Water Board for the financial
year ended 30 June 2007.
Signed at Bunbury this fourth day of July 2007.

D M PHILLIPS

T M HALL

Chairman

Board Member

B D GRANVILLE
Chief Finance Officer

MANAGEMENT INDICATORS
(These indicators are not subject to Audit by the Office of the Auditor General)
Effectiveness

PI Number

Target

2007

2006

2005

2004

Emergency Telephone system
Lost time injury frequency rate
Average time lost per injury
WorkSafe plan audit (%)
No of customers served
Area covered by operating licences (km2)

11
34
35
36
52
53

> 90%
< 6.2
< 2 days
>70%
Increasing
Increasing

100%
39.6
1217 hrs
88%
14,880
101.1

100%
19.1
1959 hrs
78%
14,480
101.1

Staff Attitudinal Survey
Customer focus
Information and analysis
Organisational performance
Leadership
Individual employment
Processes, products and services
Strategy, policy and planning
Organisation as an employer
Workplace as part of the organisation

25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33

> 3.31
> 2.90
> 3.54
> 2.84
> 3.00
> 3.14
> 2.69
> 2.80
> 2.67

3.88
3.82
3.55
3.87
3.62
3.79
3.74
3.67
3.28

4.06
3.58
3.42
3.54
3.33
3.51
3.26
3.26
3.05

3.98
3.90
3.48
3.57
3.40
3.80
3.38
3.45
3.15

4.21
4.03
3.67
3.71
3.59
3.88
3.67
3.59
3.21

4.36
3.95
3.51
3.46
3.51
3.89
3.50
3.41
3.05

Efficiency
Properties served per 100kms of water mains
Debt to equity ratio
Revenue from usage charges (% total)
Revenue from access charges (% of total)
Revenue from other sources (% of total)
Economic real rate of return
Return on assets

37
44
45
46
47
48
49

>4000
< 5%
> 60%
< 40%
> 4%
> 4%

4389
0
42.6%
33.6%
23.8%
3.63%
2.73%

4348
0
40.0%
35.6%
24.4%
4.84%
3.55%

4363
0
39.5%
38.1%
22.4%
5.05%
3.56%

4409
0
40.6%
39.8%
19.6%
5.50%
3.97%

4288
0
38.1%
40.5%
21.4%
8.44%
5.36%

100%
100%
60.3
39.5
948.6 hrs 473.5 hrs
87%
75%
14,187
14,521
101.1
100.7

2003
100%
0
0
14,216
100.7

NOTE: PI 52 number of customers = number of assessments based on Control Summary Report not Valuation Report from 1 July 2004.

KEY AUDITED PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

OUTCOME: The following performance indicators provide a measure of AQWEST’s ability to
provide sustainable, high quality water services at minimum long term cost.
PI Number
Target
Effectiveness
Water Quality - Bacteriological
1
> 98%
Water Quality - Amoebae
2
> 98%
Water Quality - Aesthetic (non health related)
3
> 95%
Water Quality - Health Related (organic)
4
> 95%
Water Quality - Health Related - (inorganic)
5
> 95%
Pressure
6
> 99.8%
Flow
7
> 99.8%
Continuity (not receiving interruption > 1 hr)
8
> 75%
Continuity (not receiving > 3 unplanned interruptions) 9
100%`
Restrictions
10
100%
Quantity water produced
12
< 9.2GL
Water Quality Complaints per 1000 services
13
<4
Customer interruption per 1000 properties
14
< 250
Average customer outage time (minutes)
15
Decreasing
Number of main breaks per 100km of water mains
41
< 20

2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

100%
100%
94.8%
100%
100%
100%
100%
97.8%
100%
100%
6.77GL
7
223
2 mins
13.3

100%
100%
99.6%
100%
99.8%
100%
100%
97.3%
100%
100%
6.50GL
4
189
3 mins
11.1

100%
100%
100%
100%
99.85%
100%
100%
97.3%
100%
100%
6.59GL
9
235
4 mins
9.5

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
95.5%
100%
100%
6.85GL
14
41
5 mins
12.5

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
95.8%
100%
100%
6.40GL
8
39
10 mins
17.5

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

> 85%
> 85%
> 85%
> 85%
> 85%
> 85%
> 85%
> 85%
> 85%

93%
87%
90%
89%
90%
84%
77%
63%
36%

90%
82%
82%
87%
84%
80%
69%
na
37%

90%
83%
91%
62%
85%
81%
75%
na
45%

81%
81%
84%
69%
84%
75%
84%
na
52%

83%
82%
82%
64%
81%
74%
69%
na
55%

Delivery
Average consumption per residential service
Average consumption all users (kl)

38
39

< 350kl
<450kl

314kl
402kl

315kl
399kl

336kl
425kl

341kl
437kl

302kl
399kl

Efficiency
Unaccounted for water
Energy consumption (kWh/kl)
Off peak energy use
Operating cost per property
Operating cost per ML

40
42
43
50
51

10.5%
0.45
65%
$411.97
$917.34

10.5%
0.38
66%
$407.59
$876.85

13.6%
0.45
69%
$363.14
$770.17

17.8%
0.42
64%
$317.70
$704.85

10.8%
<10%
0.48
<0.45
68%
> 65%
<4% increase $457.96
<6% increase $1007.08
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Customer Satisfaction Survey
Overall satisfaction with AQWEST
Overall satisfaction tap water services
Customer contact (no problem with service)
No interruption to water service
Water safe to drink
Water supplies are of an acceptable quality
AQWEST charges fairly for its service
AQWEST informs the public of water conservation
AQWEST is planning effectively for the future

Notes to the Performance Indicators
Treasurer’s Instruction 904 and contemporary best practice management requires the Bunbury Water Board to produce
performance information relating actual output to meeting targets (delivery), inputs to outputs (efficiency), and outputs to
outcomes (effectiveness). As such, the Board’s performance indicators for 2006/2007 continue to provide meaningful
information. The relationship to Bunbury Water Board’s objectives and the standard utilised to set each target is shown
below and is grouped according to each Corporate Plan Key Result Area:
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Customer Service and Regulation
Indicator Type

Indicator
Number

Effectiveness

1

Water Quality - Bacteriological

>98%

Effectiveness

2

Water Quality - Amoebae

>98%

Effectiveness

3

Water Quality - Aesthetic - non
health related

>95%

Effectiveness

4

Water Quality - Health Related
(organic)

>95%

Effectiveness

5

Water Quality - Health Related
(inorganic)

>95%

Effectiveness

6

Pressure - customers receiving
greater than 15m

>99.8%

Effectiveness

7

Flow - customers receiving
greater than 20 L/min

>99.8%

Effectiveness

8

Continuity - No of customers not
receiving interruption > 1 hour

>75%

Effectiveness

9

Continuity - No of customers not
receiving more than 3 unplanned
interruptions

100%

Effectiveness

10

Restrictions - No of customers
without restrictions

100%

Effectiveness

11

Customer Emergency Telephone
system % of customers with
response within 1 hour

>90%

Effectiveness

12

Quantity of water produced
within licensed allocation

Effectiveness

13

Effectiveness

14

Effectiveness

15

Indicator

Target
Performance

Relationship to
AQWEST’s Objectives

Standard Utilised to
Set Target

Indicators 1 to 5 relate
to desired water
quality outcomes as
specified in AQWEST’s
Corporate Plan and as
a condition in the
Operating Licence.

The targets for indicators
1 to 5 are the
requirements of NHMRC
1996 Water Quality
Guidelines which is
specified in the
Operating Licence.

Indicators 6 to 11 are
requirements of the
Operating Licence.

Targets for indicators 6
to 11 are as specified in
the Operating Licence.

<9.2 GL

Indicator 12 measures
AQWEST’s compliance
with licensed
groundwater
abstraction volumes as
specified by the
Department of Water.
.

Target based on current
groundwater licence.

Water quality complaints per
1000 services

<4

Continuous
improvement.

Customer interruption
frequency per 1000 properties

<250

Indicators 13 to 15 are
used by Water Services
Association of
Australia (WSAA)
members and used for
reporting to the
Council of Aust
Governments (COAG).

Average customer outage time

Decreasing

Related to Operating
Licence requirement.

Continuous
improvement.

Customer Satisfaction
(from phone survey)
Indicator
Type

Indicator
Number

Effectiveness

16

Overall satisfaction with AQWEST

>85%

Effectiveness

17

Overall satisfaction with tap water
service

>85%

Effectiveness

18

Customer contact (no problem with
service)

>85%

Effectiveness

19

No interruption to water service

>85%

Effectiveness

20

Water safe to drink

>85%

Effectiveness

21

Water supplies are of an acceptable
quality

>85%

Effectiveness

22

AQWEST charges fairly for its service

>85%

Effectiveness

23

AQWEST informs the public on water
conservation

>85%

Effectiveness

24

AQWEST is planning effectively for the
future

>85%

Indicator

Target
Performance

Standard Utilised to
Set Target

Relationship to
AQWEST’s Objectives
Indicators 16 to 24 are
desired customer
satisfaction outcomes as
specified in the
Corporate Plan.

Target of 85% is as
specified in the
Corporate Plan and sets a
high target level of
customer satisfaction.

Human Resources
Staff Attitudinal Survey/Australian Quality Awards Categories
Effectiveness

25

Customer Focus

>3.31

Effectiveness

26

Information and Analysis

>2.90

Effectiveness

27

Organisational Performance

>3.54

Effectiveness

28

Leadership

>2.84

Effectiveness

29

Individual Employment

>3.00

Effectiveness

30

Processes, Products and Services

>3.14

Effectiveness

31

Strategy, Policy and Planning

>2.69

Effectiveness

32

Organisation as an employer

>2.80

Effectiveness

33

Workplace as part of the organisation

>2.67

Indicators 25 to 33
measure AQWEST’s
compliance with
objectives set in the
Corporate Plan.

The target of achieving
results greater than the
Australian average in all
categories of the
Australian Quality
Awards is specified in the
Corporate Plan.

Effectiveness

34

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR)

Effectiveness

35

Average time lost per injury

Effectiveness

36

WorkSafe Plan Audit (%)

<6.2

<2 days

>70%

Corporate Plan Guiding Value Commitment to
providing a safe
workplace.

Indicators 34 and 35
measure the two
dimensions used in risk
management of
frequency and
consequence.

Continuous
Improvement.
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Customer Service and Regulation

Asset Management
Target
Performance

Relationship to
AQWEST’s Objectives

Indicator Type

Indicator
Number

Efficiency

37

Properties served per 100
kilometres of water mains

>4000

Delivery

38

Average consumption per
residential service

<350 kilolitres

Existing target used by
AQWEST.

Delivery

39

Average consumption all users
(kL)

<450 kilolitres

Continuous Improvement.

Efficiency

40

Unaccounted for water

<10%

Continuous Improvement.

Effectiveness

41

Number of main breaks per
100km

Efficiency

42

Efficiency

43

Indicator

Standard Utilised to
Set Target

Indicators 37 to 41 are
Attainable target.
used by WSAA members
and used for reporting
to COAG.

<20

Existing target used by
AQWEST.

Energy consumption (kWh/ML)

<0.45

Looking for continous
improvement.

Off peak energy use

>65%

AQWEST’s role as per the Provides a high but
Corporate Plan is to
attainable level of off
provide water at
peak power use.
minimum long term cost.
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Finance
Efficiency

44

Debt to equity ratio

<5%

Sets a high level of debt
control.

Efficiency

45

Revenue from usage charges (%
of total)

>60%

Efficiency

46

Revenue from access charges (%
of total)

<40%

Efficiency

47

Revenue from other sources (%
of total)

No target

Efficiency

48

Economic real rate of return

>4%

Efficiency

49

Return on assets

>4%

Efficiency

50

Operating cost per property

<4% increase

Continuous improvement.

Efficiency

51

Operating cost per ML

<6% increase

Continuous improvement.

Indicators 45 to 51 are
used by WSAA
members and used for
reporting to COAG.

Approximate proportion of
variable costs.

Approximate proportion of
fixed costs.

Provided to support
indicators 45 and 46.

Target for PI’s 48 and 49 set
to provide reasonable levels
of return to ensure long
term financial viability.

Opportunity
Effectiveness

52

No of customers served

Increasing

Effectiveness

53

Area covered by operating licenses
(km2)

Increasing

Indicators 52 and 53
relate to the objective
within the Corporate
Plan to expand Bunbury
Water Board’s services.

Continuous improvement.

Continuous improvement.

Customer survey methodology
The 2007 annual customer survey was completed by
market research company Strahan Research in late
April/early May 2007.

CALL RESULTS

2007
n=1848

2006
n=1520

Completed interview

21.6

26.8

The objective of the customer survey is to establish
customer and community satisfaction with a range of
AQWEST services and establish reasons for any low
satisfaction areas.

Refused

22.0

21.8

Unsuitable

9.5

12.7

No Answer

24.7

19.2

The matters that the research addresses include customers’
perceptions and attitudes toward:

Disconnected

17.3

14.2

Other

4.9

5.3

l AQWEST

MANAGEMENT OF DATA COLLECTION

l The

as their local water company

current quality of drinking water

l Performance

Surveying of households was rigorous and comprehensive.

levels and standards

l

A random telephone survey of 400 residential customers
was undertaken, allowing 95% confidence that sample
results are within 5% of residential customer population
values.
The duration of the questionnaire was approximately 5
minutes, including 10 open-ended questions that provide
information on improvements that AQWEST can make to
its services.
A random sample was drawn from the postcode 6230 area,
excluding Dalyellup, Gelorup and Pelican Point.
1848 calls were made, with the following results:

one interview per household was obtained.

sample households were telephoned up to four times in
order to make contact to complete an interview
l

only individuals within the stratified sample were
interviewed
l

l highly

experienced interviewers were used

ACCESSING AND USING QUALITATIVE INFORMATION
AQWEST requires not only accurate and reliable
quantitative data on customer perceptions but also
insightful qualitative information on the reasons for their
views in order that services can be improved or extended.
We have included 10 open ended questions to capture the
detail and complexity of residents’ views.

Average residential consumption
calculation methodology 2006/2007
consumption of the last two financial years has been as
follows:

AVERAGE CONSUMPTION PER RESIDENTIAL
SERVICE (PI 38)
Average residential consumption has again been
calculated using the formula total residential
consumption/number of residential supply fees. This
ensures that the water consumption impact of those
properties where one master meter services multi
residential properties is included. Average residential

Total Consumption (kl):
Properties supplied
Average consumption (kl):

2006/2007
4,296,053
13,672
314

2005/2006
4,110,477
13,051
315

Certification of financial statements

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the Financial
Statements misleading or inaccurate.

Mrs D M PHILLIPS

Mr T M HALL

B D GRANVILLE

Chairman

Board Member

Chief Finance Officer

BUNBURY, 4 JULY 2007

AQWEST 2006-07 ANNUAL REPORT - PAGE 21

The accompanying Financial Statements of Bunbury Water Board have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of
the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the
financial year ending 30 June 2007 and the financial position as at 30 June 2007.

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
NOTE

2007

2006

$

$

INCOME
Revenue
Water Sales
Interest Revenue
Developers Contributions
Other Revenue

2
3
4
5

6,919,141
1,131,891
823,639
106,303

6,343,215
994,135
1,162,836
120,973

8,980,974

8,621,159

4,475,258
1,538,777
25,258
722,545

3,943,205
1,476,020
34,574
511,537

Total Expenses

6,761,838

5,965,336

Profit Before Income Tax Equivalent Expense

2,219,136

2,655,823

1,178,764

782,468

Profit After Income Tax Equivalent Expense

1,040,372

1,873,355

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

1,040,372

1,873,355

Total Income

EXPENSES
Operational Expenses
Administration Expenses
Loss on Disposal of Non Current Assets
Other Expenses

Income Tax Equivalent Expense
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The Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.

6
9
10
11

12

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2007
NOTE

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Other Financial Assets
Receivables
Inventories
Other Current Assets

23
13
14
15
16

2007

2006

$

$

1,073,823
17,134,500
1,127,118
278,773
61,478

481,763
16,717,500
1,189,606
227,905
62,801

19,675,692

18,679,575

57,061,596
2,601,507

50,905,995
650,507

Total Non Current Assets

59,663,103

51,556,502

TOTAL ASSETS

79,338,795

70,236,077

1,599,741
153,451
178,592

573,282
156,048
178,692

1,931,784

908,022

160,224
6,997,567

117,538
4,475,535

Total Non Current Liabilities

7,157,791

4,593,073

TOTAL LIABILITIES

9,089,575

5,501,095

70,249,220

64,734,982

50,924,066
19,325,154

46,166,212
18,568,770

70,249,220

64,734,982

Total Current Assets
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Other Non Current Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Current Tax Liabilities
Provisions

17
16

18
19
20

Total Current Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Provisions
Deferred Tax Liabilities

20
21

NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Reserves
Retained Earnings
TOTAL EQUITY

22

The Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
NOTE

2007
$

2006
$

64,734,982

58,999,866

28,124,449
6,608,104
(2,134,238)
32,598,315

24,270,958
5,362,807
(1,509,316)
28,124,449

18,041,763
4,005,765
(3,721,777)
18,325,751

16,751,793
3,909,149
(2,619,179)
18,041,763

50,924,066

46,166,212

RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at start of period
Profit for the period
Transfers to Other Reserves
Revaluation increment of assets disposed during the period
Balance at end of period

18,568,770
1,040,372
(283,988)
19,325,154

17,977,115
1,873,355
(1,289,970)
8,270
18,568,770

Balance of equity at end of year

70,249,220

64,734,982

Balance of equity at start of year
RESERVES
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at start of period
Gains/(losses) from Asset Revaluation
Tax Effect of Revaluation Increments
Balance at end of period

17(b)
12

Other Reserves
Balance at start of period
Transfers to Reserves
Transfers from Reserves
Balance at end of period
Total Reserves
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The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

22

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
NOTE

2007

2006

$

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Sale of Goods and Services
Developers Contributions
Interest Received
GST received from Taxation Authority
Other Receipts
Payments
Payments to Suppliers and Other Employees
GST Payments to Taxation Authority

6,484,701
807,795
1,112,740
531,924
106,305

5,979,760
1,014,673
987,176
550,694
120,973

(4,108,492)
(61,667)

(4,432,047)
(61,070)

4,873,306

4,160,159

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sale of Non Current Physical Assets
Purchase of Non current Physical Assets
Purchase of Investments

76,619
(3,147,296)
(417,000)

126,140
(2,707,893)
(707,800)

Net Cash provided (used in) Investing Activities

(3,487,677)

(3,289,553)

CASH FLOWS TO STATE GOVERNMENT
Taxation Equivalents

(793,567)

(831,002)

Net Cash Provided to State Government

(793,567)

(831,002)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

592,060

39,604

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of Year

481,763

442,159

1,073,823

481,763

Net Cash provided by Operating Activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT ASSETS AT THE END OF YEAR

23

23

The Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying notes.
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AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) General Statement
The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has
been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards,
including Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board as
applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of these
requirements are modified by the Treasurer’s Instructions to vary
application, disclosure, format and wording.
The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer’s Instructions
are legislative provisions governing the preparation of financial
statements and take precedence over the Accounting Standards
and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board.
Where modification is required and has a material or significant
financial effect upon the reported results, details of that
modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.
The financial report of AQWEST - Bunbury Water Board complies
with all Australian Accounting Standards in their entirety.
The following is a summary of the material accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of the financial report. The accounting
policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.
(b) Basis of Preparation
The accounting policies set out below have been consistently
applied to all years presented.
Reporting Basis and Conventions
The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is
based on historical costs modified by the revaluation of selected
non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities for
which the fair value basis of accounting has been applied.
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(c) Income
Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or
receivable.
Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:
Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other
assets when the significant risks and rewards of ownership control
transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably.
Provision of services
Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to the client or by
reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.
Interest
Revenue is recognised on an accrual basis.
Gains
Gains may be realised or unrealised and are usually recognised on
a net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal of noncurrent assets and some revaluations of non-current assets.
(d) Income Tax
The Board operates within the National Tax Equivalent Regime
("NTER") whereby an equivalent amount in respect of income tax is
payable to the WA Department of Treasury and Finance. The
calculation of the liability in respect of income tax is governed by
NTER guidelines and directions approved by Government. As a
consequence of participation in the NTER, the Board is required to
comply with AASB 112 'Income Taxes'.
The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax
payable on the current period's taxable income adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements,
and to unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary
differences at the tax rate expected to apply when the assets are
recovered or liabilities settled, based on those tax rates which are
enacted or substantively enacted. The relevant tax rates are
applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable
temporary differences to measure the deferred tax asset or liability.
An exception is made for certain temporary differences arising from

the initial recognition of an asset or liability. No deferred tax asset or
liability is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if
they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that
at the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting profit
or taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.
Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts
recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in equity.
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets
Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure that cost
over $100 and have a useful life of over three years are recognised
as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated)
over their useful lives. Items of property, plant and equipment and
infrastructure that cost less than $100 are expensed directly to the
Income Statement (other than where they form part of a group of
similar items which are significant in total).
The current Operating Licence for AQWEST-Bunbury Water Board
expires in January 2022. However, the Board views useful life to
relate to the full useful life over which the assets will be utilised.
Initial recognition and measurement
All items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure are
initially recognised at cost.
For items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure
acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, cost is their fair value at the
date of acquisition.
Subsequent measurement
After recognition as an asset, the Board uses the revaluation model
for the measurement of land, buildings and infrastructure and the
cost model for all other property, plant and equipment. Land,
buildings and infrastructure are carried at fair value less
accumulated depreciation on buildings and infrastructure and
accumulated impairment losses. All other items of property, plant
and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.
Where market evidence is available, the fair value of land and
buildings is determined by reference to recent market transactions.
When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market
transactions, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated
depreciation is restated proportionately.
The revaluation of land and buildings is an independent valuation
provided on an annual basis by the Western Australian Land
Information Authority (Valuation Services).
Land and buildings were last revalued in the financial year ended
30 June 2006.
Fair value of infrastructure is determined by reference to the
written-down current replacement cost (existing use basis) as the
assets are specialised and no market evidence of value is
available. Land under infrastructure is included in land reported
under property, plant and equipment and is valued with reference
to current market values.
Valuations are provided by an independent valuer every 3 to 5
years.
When infrastructure is revalued, the accumulated depreciation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the
net amount restated to the revalued amount.
The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made
in assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets.
Professional judgment by the valuer is required where the
evidence does not provide a clear distinction between market type
assets and existing use assets.

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are
systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a
manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic
benefits.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is
calculated using the straight line or diminishing value method,
using rates which are reviewed annually.
The depreciation rates for each class of depreciable assets
(based on their estimated useful lives) are:
Asset Class
Depreciation Rate(s)
Buildings at Fair Value
1.5% to 22.5%
Mains at Fair Value
0.81 to 12.95%
Mains at Cost
1.88% to 40%
Meters at Fair Value
10% to 14.3%
Treatment Plants at Fair Value 1.7% to 30%
Reservoirs at Fair Value
1.5% to 31.6%
Bores & Pumps at Fair Value 1.18% to 90%
Plant & Equipment at Cost
15% to 100%
Motor Vehicles at Cost
18.75% to 30%
Office Equipment at Cost
15% to 100%
Tools at Cost
25% to 100%

Method
Diminishing Value
Straight Line
Diminishing Value
Straight Line
Straight Line
Straight Line
Straight Line
Diminishing Value
Diminishing Value
Diminishing Value
Diminishing Value

(f) Intangible Assets
Computer Software
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated
as property, plant and equipment. Software that is not an integral
part of the related hardware is treated as an intangible asset.
Software that cost less than $5,000 is expensed in the year of
acquisition.
(g) Impairment of Assets
At each reporting date, the Board reviews the carrying values of its
tangible assets to determine whether there is an indication that
those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's
fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the
asset's carrying value. Any excess of the asset's carrying value
over its recoverable amount is expensed to the income statement.
Following the Board's review of carrying values at 30 June 2006,
there were no indicators of impairment identified.
(h) Financial Instruments
Recognition
Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date,
which includes transaction costs, when the related contractual
rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition these
instruments are measured as set out below.

Held-to-maturity investments
These investments have a fixed maturity date, and it is the Board's
intention to hold these investments to maturity. Any held-tomaturity investments held by the Board are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at amortised
cost, comprising original debt less principal payments and
amortisation.
Impairment
At each reporting date, the Board assesses whether there is
objective evidence that a financial instrument has been impaired.
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

(j) Inventories
Inventories are classified as held for distribution and are
measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost.
Costs are assigned on a first in first out basis.
(k) Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice
amount less an allowance for any uncollectable amounts. The
collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and
any receivables identified as uncollectable are written-off. The
allowance for uncollectable amounts (doubtful debts) is raised
when there is objective evidence that the Board will not be able to
collect its debts.
(l) Payables
Payables are recognised when the Board becomes obliged to
make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or
services at the amounts payable.
The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are
generally settled within 30 days.
(m) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount. The
Board recognises a provision where there is a present legal,
equitable or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and
when the outflow of economic benefits is probable and can be
measured reliably. Provisions are reviewed at each balance date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
(i) Provisions - Employee Benefits
Annual Leave and Long Service Leave
The liability for annual and long service leave expected to
be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting
date is recognised and measured at the undiscounted
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. Annual and long service leave expected to be
settled more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
date is measured at the present value of amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Leave
liabilities are in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.
When assessing expected future payments
consideration is given to expected future wage and salary
levels including non-salary components such as
employer superannuation contributions. In addition, the
long service leave liability also considers the experience
of employee departures and periods of service.
The expected future payments are discounted to present
value using market yields at the reporting date on
national government bonds with terms to maturity that
match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows.
All annual leave and unconditional long service leave
provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Board
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
date.
(n) Comparative Figures
Where required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures
have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for
the current financial year.
(o) Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not
yet operative
The Board cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting
Standard or Interpretation unless specifically permitted by TI
1101 ‘Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other
Pronouncements’. No standards and interpretations that have
been issued or amended but are not yet effective have been
adopted by the Board for the annual reporting period ended 30
June 2007.
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Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash and cash equivalents that are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
DESCRIPTION

2 WATER SALES
Water Sales
Rates and Supply Fees
Water Charges
Other Water Charges
Less: Rebates Given

3 INTEREST REVENUE
Interest from Cash and Cash Equivalents
Interest from Receivables
Interest from Other Financial Assets

4 DEVELOPERS CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions to Headworks
Contributions to Mains Subdivisions
Note: The Value of Contributions to Mains Subdivisions for the 2006 financial year has been restated from $128,377
to $286,625. This is to include gifted mains to the value of $158,248 which were unidentified as at 30 June 2006.
This restatement had the effect of understating Profit Before Income Tax Equivalent and Profit after Income Tax Equivalent
by $158,248, overstating the Asset Revaluation Reserve by $158,248 and understating Retained Earnings by $158,248.

2007

2006

$

$

3,021,968
3,827,207
356,107
(286,141)
6,919,141

3,012,913
3,392,810
232,729
(295,237)
6,343,215

12,104
12,650
1,107,137
1,131,891

30,509
14,142
949,484
994,135

801,502
22,137
823,639

876,211
286,625
1,162,836

21,038
45,872
39,393
106,303

16,627
65,665
38,681
120,973

1,202,989
311,088
583,023
475,682
355,554
2,928,336
1,546,922
4,475,258

1,417,961
280,308
516,527
347,206
39,628
2,601,630
1,341,575
3,943,205

1,150,930

1,403,246

121,670
78,694
390,900
289,764
403,637
90,511
76,068
5,649
344,052
213,222
200,784
39,783
7,681
93,901
257,928
(54)
(2,165)
311,088
5,223
2,928,336

43,104
206,609
475,076
348,652
354,453
104,163
66,596
298
238,961
266,218
121,102
19,795
8,106
26,169
1,266
27,295
280,308
13,459
2,601,630

The financial report has been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for the prior year,
as described above - refer note 28.

5 OTHER REVENUE
Hydrant Hire
Other Revenue
Rental Receipts

6 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Cost of Services : Materials
Electricity
Salaries and Wages
Employee Overheads
Other Expenses
Note 8
Depreciation

7 COST OF WATER SALES
Cost of Water Sales
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Cost of water sales represents costs incurred for water treatment, operation of bores and
reservoirs, and depreciation expense related to these processes.

8 COST OF SERVICES
Cost of Services are allocated on a job basis as follows:
Bore Maintenance and Operations
Reservoir Maintenance
Filter Maintenance
Mains Maintenance
Service Maintenance
Compliance Water Testing
Meter Reading
Meter Maintenance
New Services
Filter Operations
Chemical Treatment
Booster Pump Maintenance
Tools Repairs and Replacements
Forward Planning
Engineering Analysis
Loss/(Gain) on Sale of Obsolete Stock
Charge Works - General
Electricity Charges
Other

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
DESCRIPTION

9 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Write Offs
Computer Maintenance and Software
Insurance
Legal Expenses
Rent
Salaries and Wages
Superannuation

2007

2006

$

$

3,232
154,020
98,264
18,923
65,732
1,004,497
194,109
1,538,777

5,088
147,960
130,239
5,261
69,045
913,582
204,845
1,476,020

101,877

160,714

76,619
25,258

126,140
34,574

10 NET LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF NON CURRENT ASSETS
Costs of Disposal of Non Current Assets
Plant, equipment and vehicles
Proceeds from Disposal of Non Current Assets
Plant, equipment and vehicles
Net (gain)/loss
11 OTHER EXPENSES
Public Relations [a]
Audit Cost [b]
Asset Revaluation Offset [c]
Valuation Expenses [d]
Utilities Costs [e]
Printing, Stationery, Postage and Office Expenses [f]
Fringe Benefits Tax [g]
Advertising, Water Conservation and Customer Survey
Board Members’ Allowances, Meeting Expenses and Travel
Building Maintenance [h]
CEO Replacement Provision [i]
Taxation Consultancy [j]
Staff Training [k]
Other [l]

119,506
30,690
29,504
9,278
65,353
64,779
20,282
50,417
52,007
28,465
862
16,638
23,757
511,537
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[a] Includes expenditure on the Board's 100th anniversary celebrations
[b] Audit Cost - includes fees to the Office of the Auditor General - refer to note 27
[c] Offset as a result of a decrement in the carrying value of Treatment Plants
[d] Expenses incurred to value non-current assets
[e] Office utilities including electricity, rates and telephone costs
[f] General printing, stationery, postage and other associated costs
[g] Fringe benefits tax expense for the fringe benefits tax year
[h] Maintenance costs relating to administration office
[i] Costs associated with replacement of the Chief Executive Officer
[j] Tax Equivalent Regime administration and consultancy fees
[k] Administration, engineering and executive staff training, travel and accomodation
[l] Miscellaneous items including bank fees, corporate uniforms and membership fees

260,828
34,750
9,281
73,831
64,381
17,070
42,181
52,495
20,972
23,220
13,315
46,536
63,685
722,545

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
DESCRIPTION

2007

2006

$

$

12 TAXATION EQUIVALENT
Major components of income tax expense for the years
ended 30 June 2007 and 2006 are:
Income statement
Current income
Current income tax charge
Overstatement of prior year income tax change
Deferred income tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in income statement

803,413
(12,443)

716,351
-

387,794
1,178,764

66,117
782,468

2,134,238
2,134,238

1,509,316
1,509,316

2,219,136

2,655,823

665,741

796,747

Statement of changes in equity
Deferred income tax
Fair value adjustments to property plant and equipment
Income tax benefit reported in equity
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit before
income tax at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at the Board’s
effective income tax rate for the years ended 30 June 2007 and 2006 is as follows:
Profit before income tax equivalents
Tax at the statutory income tax rate of 30%
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income
Tax effect of amounts which are not assessable in calculating taxable income
Temporary Differences now brought to account
Overstatement of prior year income tax charge
At effective income tax rate of 53.1% (2006: 29.5%)

2,760
522,706
(12,443)
1,178,764

33,195
(47,474)
782,468

Income tax expense reported in income statement

1,178,764

782,468
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Fair value adjustments to property, plant & equipment
Interest Receivable
Deferred Developers Contributions
Employee Entitlements
Tax (assets) liabilities
Set off of tax
Net tax liabilities
Movement in temporary differences during the year

Fair value adjustments to property, plant & equipment
Interest Receivable
Employee Entitlements

Movement in temporary differences during the year

Fair value adjustments to property, plant & equipment
Interest Receivable
Deferred Developers Contributions
Employee Entitlements

Assets
2007
2006
$
$
(101,645) (88,869)
(101,645) (88,869)
101,645
88,869
-

Liabilities
2007
2006
$
$
6,676,082
4,489,228
80,921
75,176
342,209
7,099,212
4,564,404
(88,869)
(101,645)
6,997,567
4,475,535

Net
2007
$
6,676,082
80,921
342,209
(101,645)
6,997,567
6,997,567

2006
$
4,489,228
75,176
(88,869)
4,475,535
4,475,535

Balance
1 July 2005
$
2,992,557
137,444
(97,665)
3,032,336

Recognised
in Income
$
(12,645)
(62,268)
8,796
(66,117)

Recognised
in Equity
$
1,509,316
1,509,316

Balance
30 June 2006
$
4,489,228
75,176
(88,869)
4,475,535

Balance
1 July 2006
$
4,489,228
75,716
(88,869)
4,475,535

Recognised
in Income
$
52,616
5,745
342,209
(12,776)
387,794

Recognised
in Equity
$
2,134,238
2,134,238

Balance
30 June 2007
$
6,676,082
80,921
342,209
(101,645)
6,997,567

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
DESCRIPTION

13 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
INVESTMENTS
Asset Replacement Deposit Account
Headworks Deposit Account
Fund 1 Deposit Account
Subdivision Deposit Account
EDP Upgrade Deposit Account
Business Development Reserve Account
14 RECEIVABLES
Trade Debtors Rates
Sundry Debtors
Accrued Interest

15 INVENTORIES
Inventories Held for Distribution (at Cost)
16 OTHER ASSETS
Current
Prepayments
Non Current
Work in Progress
17 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Land at Fair Value
Buildings at Fair Value
Accumulated Depreciation

2007

2006

$

$

10,673,000
4,796,000
972,000
395,000
298,500
17,134,500

9,129,000
5,793,000
1,186,000
361,000
248,500
16,717,500

647,363
210,019
269,736

880,839
58,182
250,585

1,127,118

1,189,606

278,773

227,905

61,478

62,801

2,601,507

650,507

2,239,972
2,239,972
1,618,320
(279,205 )

2,239,972
2,239,972
1,618,320
(213,096)

Accumulated Impairment Losses
Mains at Fair Value
Accumulated Depreciation

-

-

1,339,115

1,405,224

27,016,634

27,016,634

(499,997)

Accumulated Impairment Losses

-

-

26,516,637

27,016,634

Mains at Cost

248,368

97,241

Accumulated Depreciation

(32,544)

Accumulated Impairment Losses

-

-

215,824

97,241

Meters at Fair Value

1,664,398

1,572,550

Accumulated Depreciation

(205,914)

Accumulated Impairment Losses

-

1,572,550

6,011,402

5,360,800

Accumulated Depreciation

(174,107)

Accumulated Impairment Losses
Reservoirs at Fair Value

5,837,295

5,360,800

16,124,800

11,830,797

Accumulated Depreciation

-

Accumulated Impairment Losses

-

Bores & Pumps at Fair Value

-

(866,715)
-

16,124,800

10,964,082

2,853,400

2,179,918

Accumulated Depreciation

-

Accumulated Impairment Losses

2,853,400

(357,698)
1,822,220
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1,458,484
Treatment Plants at Fair Value

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
DESCRIPTION

2007

2006

$

$

Plant & Equipment at Cost

121,005

180,704

Accumulated Depreciation

(68,384)

(153,929)

Accumulated Impairment Losses

-

-

52,621
Motor Vehicles at Cost
Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Impairment Losses

395,534

334,409

(110,255)

(86,087)

285,279

Office Equipment at Cost
Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Impairment Losses

Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Impairment Losses

248,322

396,536

411,588

(275,822)

(267,732)

120,714

Tools at Cost

26,775

143,856

73,435

61,107

(55,980)

(52,788)

-

-

17,455

8,319

57,061,596

50,905,995

17(a) Property Plant and Equipment at Fair Value
An independent valuation of Reservoirs, Bores and Pumps asset classes was completed by Aon Valuation Services during the 2007
financial year. The effective date of the revaluation was 30 June 2007, with the revaluation being brought to account on the same date.
The valuation of Reservoirs, Bores and Pumps asset classes was determined by utilising the Depreciated Current Replacement Cost
method.
Land Valuations (based on market value) were completed by the Department of Land Information during the financial year ended 30
June 2006, which valued land holdings at $1,090,909. Other land was purchased after the revaluation and was not included in this
valuation.
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A Building Valuation (based on market value) was also completed by the Department of Land Information during the financial year
ended 30 June 2006, which valued buildings at $1,405,224. The fair value of all land and buildings has been determined by
reference to recent market transactions.
An independent valuation of Water Mains, Treatment Plants and Meter asset classes was completed by Aon Valuation Services during
the 2006 financial year. The effective date of the revaluation was 30 June 2006, with the revaluation being brought to account on the
same date. The valuation of Water Mains, Treatment Plants and Meter asset classes was determined by utilising the Depreciated
Current Replacement Cost method.
In June 2006, a reservoir liner was written down due to physical deficiencies. Engineering firm Gutteridge Haskins & Davey Pty Ltd valued
the liner at $352,944, which resulted in a write down of $192,369 from the asset’s previous book value of $545,313.

Carrying Amount
at the Start of the
Year
$
2,239,972
1,405,224
27,016,634
97,241
1,572,550
5,360,800
10,964,082
1,822,220
26,775
248,322
143,856
8,319
50,905,995

Carrying aAmount
at the Start of the
Year
$
892,730
1,362,523
19,698,943
2,378,034
854,157
5,629,522
11,336,115
1,946,752
30,747
223,176
125,831
8,775
44,487,305

2007
Land at Fair Value
Buildings at Fair Value
Mains at Fair Value
Mains at Cost
Meters at Fair Value
Treatment Plants at Fair Value
Reservoirs at Fair Value
Bores & Pumps at Fair Value
Plant and Equipment at Cost
Motor Vehicles at Cost
Office Equipment at Cost
Tools at Cost
Totals

2006
Land at Fair Value
Buildings at Cost
Mains at Fair Value
Mains at Cost
Meters at Fair Value
Treatment Plants at Cost
Reservoirs at Fair Value
Bores & Pumps at Fair Value
Plant and Equipment at Cost
Motor Vehicles at Cost
Office Equipment at Cost
Tools at Cost
Totals
564,515
168,506
127,771
124,409
4,780
5,174
208,629
75,906
3,361
2,433,149

Additions
$
1,149,063
1,035

33,012
150,750
36,506
21,590
1,196,296

151,127
120,938
650,602
31,771

Additions
$

(151,791)

(123,076)
(1,638)

(27,077)

Disposals
$

(56,067)
(4,758)
(2,206)
(101,877)

(38,846)

Disposals
$

-

5,079,772
(5,079,772)

Transfers
Between
Categories
$

-

Transfers
Between
Categories
$

5,362,807

(192,369)

Revaluation
Increments
(Decrements) to
Asset
Revaluation
Reserve
$
198,179
109,459
2,356,926
2,279,149
611,463

6,608,104

5,438,481
1,156,061

13,562

Revaluation
Increments
(Decrements) to
Asset
Revaluation
Reserve
$

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

116,100

(42,148)

158,248

Revaluation
Increments
(Decrements) to
Income
Statement
$

-

Revaluation
Increments
(Decrements) to
Income
Statement
$

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of infrastructure, property, plant, equipment and vehicles at the beginning and
end of the reporting period are set out below:

17(b) Movements in Carrying Amounts

DESCRIPTION
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-

Impairment
Losses
$

-

Impairment
Losses
$

(66,109)
(499,997)
(32,544)
(209,720)
(174,107)
(309,534)
(124,881)
(7,166)
(57,726)
(54,890)
(10,248)
(1,546,922)

Depreciation
$

-

(67,793)
(277,255)
(44,685)
(34,499)
(354,345)
(304,073)
(129,312)
(9,146)
(60,407)
(56,243)
(3,817)
(1,341,575)

Impairment
Losses Reversed Depreciation
$
$

-

Impairment
Losses Reversed
$

Carrying Amount
at the End of the
Year
$
2,239,972
1,405,224
27,016,634
97,241
1,572,550
5,360,800
10,964,082
1,822,220
26,775
248,322
143,856
8,319
50,905,995

Carrying Amount
at the End of the
Year
$
2,239,972
1,339,115
26,516,637
215,824
1,458,484
5,837,295
16,124,800
2,853,400
52,621
285,279
120,714
17,455
57,061,596

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
DESCRIPTION

18 PAYABLES
Current
Trade Creditors
Accrued Salaries and Wages
Other Accrued Expenses

19 CURRENT TAX LIABILITY
Income Tax Equivalent Payable
20 PROVISIONS
Current
Employee Benefits Provision
Annual Leave (a)
Long Service Leave (b)
Rostered Days Off (e)
Superannuation (d)
Other Provisions
Employment On-Costs (c)
Non Current
Long Service Leave (b)
Superannuation (d)
Other Provisions
Employment On-Costs (c)

2007

2006

$

$

1,551,771
23,681
24,289

529,248
17,156
26,878

1,599,741

573,282

153,451

156,048

114,961
21,898
18,715
155,574

81,494
64,448
15,383
161,325

23,018
178,592

17,367
178,692

132,010
132,010

94,899
94,899

28,214
160,224

22,639
117,538

114,961
114,961

81,494
81,494

21,898
132,010
153,908

64,448
94,899
159,347

6,997,567

4,475,535

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after reporting date.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as follows:
Within 12 months or reporting date
More than 12 months after reporting date

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is
no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after
reporting date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities
will occur as follows:
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Within 12 months of reporting date
More than 12 months after reporting date

(c) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the
payment of employment on-costs including workers’ compensation premiums
and payroll tax. The provision is measured at the present value of expected
future payments. The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the
discount (finance cost), is included in the annual leave and long service leave
provision amounts as shown at (a), (b) and (c).
(d) The Bunbury Water Board does not participate in a defined benefits plan and
as such there is no superannuation provision.
(a) Rostered Day Off liabilities have been classified as current as there is no
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after reporting date.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur
within 12 months.
21 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Deferred Tax Liabilities

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
DESCRIPTION

2007

2006

$

$

22 RESERVES
EDP Upgrade Reserve
Opening Balance
Transfers to Reserve
Transfers from Reserve
Closing Balance
Asset Replacement Reserve
Opening Balance
Transfers to Reserve
Transfers from Reserve
Closing Balance
Headworks Reserve
Opening Balance
Transfers to Reserve
Transfers from Reserve
Closing Balance
Mains Subdivision Reserve
Opening Balance
Transfers to Reserve
Transfers from Reserve
Closing Balance
Business Development Reserve
Opening Balance
Transfers to Reserve
Transfers from Reserve
Closing Balance

374,911
126,498
(35,408)
466,001

306,623
69,235
(947)
374,911

9,924,353
2,548,706
(1,495,325)
10,977,734

9,604,445
2,382,239
(2,062,331)
9,924,353

6,090,552
1,180,850
(1,844,318)
5,427,084

5,185,336
1,203,589
(298,373)
6,090,552

1,397,818
92,070
(338,185)
1,151,703

1,454,562
200,784
(257,528)
1,397,818

254,129
57,641
(8,541)
303,229
18,325,751

200,827
53,302
254,129
18,041,763

Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at Start of Period
Gains/(Losses) from Asset Revaluation
Tax Effect of Revaluation (Increments) Decrements
Balance at End of Period

28,124,449
6,608,104
(2,134,238)
32,598,315

24,270,958
5,362,807
(1,509,316)
28,124,449

TOTAL RESERVE S

50,924,066

46,166,212

519,190
425,245
1,733
729
126,984
(1,558)
1,500
1,073,823

(268,394)
131,023
59
32,194
585,228
403
1,250
481,763

The Board maintains the following reserves:
EDP Upgrade Reserve: To provide for future upgrades of the Board's computer system.
Asset Replacement Reserve: To cater for the ongoing replacement of the Board's
capital infrastructure.
Headworks Reserve: To fund augmentation works to service growth requirements.
Mains Subdivision Reserve: To fund subdivisional development.
Business Development Reserve: To fund future business development

Reconciliation of Operating Activities
Operating Profit from Ordinary Activities after Income Tax Equivalent
Depreciation
Loss on Disposal of Assets
Income Tax Equivalent
Non-Cash Developers Contributions
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
- (Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Debtors
- (Increase)/Decrease in Stock
- (Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments
- Increase in Trade Creditors and Accruals
- Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Provisions

1,040,372
1,546,922
25,258
1,178,764
-

1,873,355
1,341,575
34,574
782,468
(158,248)

62,488
(50,868)
1,324
1,026,460
42,586

190,366
60,654
1,579
63,155
(29,319)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

4,873,306

4,160,159
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23 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Reconciliation of Cash Balances
Cash at the end of the financial period, as shown in the Cash Flow Statement is reconciled
to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:
Current Accounts
General Working Current Account
Headworks Current Account
EDP Upgrade Current Account
Subdivision Current Account
Asset Replacement Current Account
Business Development Reserve Current Account
Floats

-

-

-

Weighted Average
Effective Interest Rate
%
Variable Interest Rate
$
4.38%
481,763
5.72%
481,763

-

-

Within 1 year
$
16,717,500
16,717,500

-

Within 1 year
$
17,134,500
17,134,500

-

1-2 Years
$
-

-

1-2 Years
$
-

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements
are not materially different from their net fair values.

Fair Values

Financial Liabilities
Payables

2006
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Payables

2007
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other Financial Assets

Weighted Average
Effective Interest Rate
%
Variable Interest Rate
$
4.55%
1,073,823
6.26%
1,073,823

The following table details the Board’s exposure to interest rate risk as at the reporting date:

Interest Rate Risk Exposure

-

3-4 Years
$
-

-

2-3 Years
$
-

-

3-4 Years
$
-

Fixed Interest Rate Maturity

-

2-3 Years
$
-

Fixed Interest Rate Maturity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Bunbury Water Board has limited exposure to financial risks. The Board’s overall risk management program
focuses on managing the risks identified below.
Credit risk
All debts pertaining to water sales are secured against the land to which to debts relate.
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Board’s
exposure to bad debts is minimal. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk.
Liquidity risk
The Board’s objective is to maintain sufficient cash assets on hand to meet its debts as and
when they fall due. The Board has sufficient financial assets to ensure that it is able to
meet its commitments.

24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

DESCRIPTION
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-

4-5 Years
$
-

-

4-5 Years
$
-

-

More than 5 Years
$
-

-

More than 5 Years
$
-

573,282
573,282

Non-Interest
Bearing
$
1,189,606
1,189,606

1,599,741
1,599,741

Non-Interest
Bearing
$
1,127,118
1,127,118

573,282
573,282

Total
$
481,763
1,189,606
16,717,500
18,388,869

1,599,741
1,599,741

Total
$
1,073,823
1,127,118
17,134,500
19,335,441

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
DESCRIPTION

2007

2006

$

$

25 CREDIT STANDBY ARRANGEMENTS AND LOAN FACILITIES
Credit Standby Arrangements:
Standby funds are provided by the Board’s bankers. A total of $250,000 is accessible by the Board.
The bank overdraft facility may be drawn at any time and is subject to annual review.
At 30 June 2007, an aggregate amount of $250,000 (2006 $124,069) remained unused.
Summary of Loan Facilities:
Credit Standby Arrangement

$250,000

$124,069

The total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits received
or due and receivable for the financial year by members of the Accountable Authority from
the Board or related body.

33,354

28,941

The total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits received
or due and receivable for the financial year by Senior Officers other than members of the
Board or related body.

370,348

386,994

The number of members of AQWEST-Bunbury Water Board whose total fees, salaries, nonmonetary benefits and other benefits received or due and receivable for the financial year
falls within the following bands:
$nil to $10,000
$10,001 to $20,000

5
1

6
1

1
1
1
1
4

2
1
1
4

29,950
29,950

30,690
30,690

26 REMUNERATION OF MEMBERS OF THE ACCOUNTABLE AUTHORITY
AND SENIOR OFFICERS

The number of Senior Officers other than members of AQWEST-Bunbury Water Board whose
total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits received or
due and receivable for the financial year falls within the following bands:
$50,001 to $60,000
$70,001 to $80,000
$90,001 to $100,000
$100,001 to $110,000
$130,001 to $140,000
$140,001 to $150,000
Superannuation expenses included in the above amounts represent superannuation
expenses incurred by the Board in respect of Senior Officers other than Senior Officers
reported as members of the Bunbury Water Board.
No Senior Officers are members of the Pension Scheme
27 REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR
Remuneration payable to the Auditor General for the financial year is
as follows:
Auditing the accounts, financial statements, and performance indicators
The expense is included at note 11 ‘Other Expenses’.

During the year ended 30 June 2007 the Board identified various infrastructure assets which had been gifted, primarily in the form of mains
pipe constructed due to ongoing developments, over the previous four financial years.
The fair value of gifted mains for the previous four financial years was as follows:
Year Ended 30 June 2006
$158,248
Year Ended 30 June 2005
$146,590
Year Ended 30 June 2004
$541,259
Year Ended 30 June 2003
$87,900
The Mains asset class was revalued in the year ended 30 June 2006. This implied that although the revenue had not been previously recognised as
non-cash contributions, the fair value of the Mains asset class was stated correctly.
For the year ended 30 June 2006, a retrospective adjustment of $775,749,has been made to both Retained Earnings and the Asset Revaluation
Reserve to reflect the overstatement of the Asset Revaluation Reserve and the understatement of Profit for the years ended 30 June 2003, 2004
and 2005.
For the year ended 30 June 2006, Revenue, Retained Earnings and the Asset Revaluation Reserve have been restated by $158,248 to reflect the
understatement of Revenue, the overstatement of the Asset Revaluation Reserve and the understatement of Retained Earnings for the year.
The taxation consequences of these gifted assets is not yet known - refer note 32.
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28 RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
DESCRIPTION

The following provides a summary of the effect of this restatement:

Previously
Stated
$

Opening Retained Earnings at 1 July 2005
Developers Contribution Income for the year ended 30 June 2006
Profit for the year ended 30 June 2006
Closing Retained Earnings at 30 June 2006
Asset Revaluation Reserve at 1 July 2005
Gains/(Losses) from Asset Revaluation 2006
Asset Revaluation Reserve at 30 June 2006

17,201,366
1,004,588
1,715,107
17,634,773
25,046,707
5,521,055
29,058,446

28 RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES cont.

Adjustments
$
775,749
158,248
158,248
933,997
(775,749)
(158,248)
(933,997)

Restated
$
17,977,115
1,162,836
1,873,355
18,568,770
24,270,958
5,362,807
28,124,449

29 EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
i) This statement provides details of any significant variations between estimates
and actual results for the 2007 financial year. Significant variations are considered
to be those greater than 10% or $200,000

Actual
2007
$

Estimate
2007
$

Variation
$

Water Sales Revenue
Budgeted kilolitres = 5,575,302kl
Actual kilolitres = 6,035,989kl

3,827,207

3,627,256

199,951

Interest Revenue
Reduced expenditure from reserves resulting in increased interest revenue on investments

1,131,891

693,800

438,091

Cost of Services
Budgeted capital works totaling $648,080 expensed at year end due to their
eventual non-capital nature

2,928,336

1,996,241

932,095

Administration Expenses
Computer Software & Maintenance - Budget $234,700, Actual $154,020
Insurance - Budget $181,167, Actual $98,264

1,538,777

1,728,614

(189,837)

ii) This statement provides details of any significant variations between actual
revenues and expenditures for the 2007 financial year and revenues and
expenditures for the 2006 financial year.
Water Sales
Actual kilolitres 2006 = 5,821,180kl
Actual kilolitres 2007 = 6,035,989kl

Actual
2006
$

Variation
$

3,827,207

3,392,810

434,397

823,639

1,162,836

(339,197)

Administration Expenses
Insurance 2006=$98,264, 2007=$260,828
Salaries & Wages 2006=$913,582, 2007=$1,004,497

1,538,777

1,476,020

62,757

Other Expenses
Public Relations 2006=$119,506, 2007=$260,828
CEO Replacement Provision 2006=nil, 2007=$23,220
Asset Revaluation Offset 2006=$29,504, 2007=nil
Staff Training 2006=$16,638, 2007=$46,537

722,545

511,537

211,008

2007
$

2006
$

Developers Contributions
Demand driven
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Actual
2007
$

30 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Write-offs:
Revenue and other property written off by the Board during the
financial year
Losses Through Theft, Defaults and Other Causes
Losses of public moneys and public and other property through theft or default
Amounts recovered

Gifts of Public Property
Gifts of public property provided by the Board (a)
(a) Floating Stone provided to the City of Bunbury in honour of the Board’s 100 year
celebrations. These amounts are inclusive of GST.

5,704

19,153

-

-

198,000

49,500

AQWEST - BUNBURY WATER BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
DESCRIPTION

2007

2006

$

$

31 COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
(a) Capital Expenditure Commitments
Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure additional to the
amounts reported in the financial statements, are payable as follows:
Within 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
The capital commitments include amounts for:
Land
Treatment Plants
Reservoirs
Mains
These commitments are all inclusive of GST.

12,064,031
330,000
55,000

3,338,500
3,866,500
5,500

4,036,000
440,000
737,000
7,236,031

440,000
1,650,000
5,120,500

(b) Lease Commitments
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised
as liabilities, are payable as follows:
Within 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

11,332
-

69,235
146,990
-

Representing:
Cancellable operating leases
Non-cancellable operating leases
Future finance charges on finance leases
These commitments are all inclusive of GST.

11,332
-

216,225
-

78,430
162,223
27,500
268,153

308,152
211,483
30,960
550,595

(c) Expenditure Commitments
Other expenditure commitments, including information technology support, internal audit,
external audit, office cleaning and sanitary services, contracted for at the reporting date
but not recognised as liabilities, are payable as follows:
Within 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
Contingent Liabilities
During the year ended 30 June 2007, the Board identified various infrastructure assets which have been gifted to the Board over the past
five financial years.
As of the date of this report, the Board is in the process of establishing any tax payable to the Australian Taxation Office in regards to
these gifted assets (if any).

33 EVENTS OCCURING AFTER REPORTING DATE
There have been no events occuring after reporting date requiring disclosure in the 30 June 2007 financial statements.
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Contingent Assets
In addition to the assets incorporated in the financial statements, the Board has the following contingent asset:
a) Litigation in progress
The Board has commenced a negligence claim against a supplier as a result of faulty materials supplied. The estimated potential
financial effect cannot be readily measured at this point in time.

ANNUAL ESTIMATES 2007/2008
BUDGETED BALANCE
SHEET 2007/2008

BUDGETED INCOME
STATEMENT 2007/2008
PARTICULARS

2007/2008
Budgeted

REVENUE
Water Sales
Rates and Supply Fees
Less Rebates
Other Income
Interest Received
Developers Contribution
Profit on Sale of Plant
All Other Revenue
TOTAL REVENUE
EXPENDITURE
Cost of Services
Salaries & Wages
Employee Overheads
Materials
Other Expenses
Electricity
Administration and Other Expenses
Bad Debts
Computer Maintenance
and Software
Depreciation
Insurance
Interest
Legal Expenses
Rent
Salaries and Wages
Superannuation
All Other Expenses
TOTAL EXPENSES
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OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE
INCOME TAX EQUIVALENT
Income Tax Equivalent

3,993,360
2,938,660
6,932,020
(329,880)
6,602,140

PARTICULARS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Total Current Assets

375,400
700,000
(685)
444,751
1,519,466
8,121,606

696,400
631,112
1,327,512
252,449
150,000
296,894
2,026,856
2,000
295,700
1,821,378
167,553
30,000
6,833
1,206,646
177,339
694,459
4,401,909
6,428,765

2007/2008
Budgeted
589,500
6,051,000
1,000,000
268,000
15,000
7,923,500

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant & Equipment
Investments
Deferred Tax Assets
Work in Progress

73,026,337
300,000

Total Non Current Assets

73,326,337

Total Assets

81,249,837

CURRENT LIABILITES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Borrowings
Provisions
Other Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Provisions

20,000
50,000
150,000
220,000
4,565,500
200,300

Total Non Current Liabilities

4,765,800

Total Liabilities

4,985,800

NET ASSETS

76,264,037

EQUITY
Retained Profits

37,285,446

1,692,842
507,900

Reserves:
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Other Reserves

32,741,675
6,236,915

1,184,942

Total Reserve Funds

38,978,590

TOTAL EQUITY

76,264,037

PROFIT AFTER INCOME
TAX EQUIVALENT
Retained profits at the
beginning of the financial year
Transfers from Reserves
Transfer to Reserves

25,523,044
13,843,240
(3,265,779)

RETAINED PROFITS AT THE
END OF FINANCIAL YEAR

37,285,446

AUDITOR GENERAL
INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION
To the Parliament of Western Australia
BUNBURY WATER BOARD
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
I have audited the accounts, financial statements, controls and key performance indicators
of the Bunbury Water Board.
The financial statements comprise the Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2007, and the Income
Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement (of the Board) for the
year then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Notes.
The key performance indicators consist of key indicators of effectiveness and efficiency.
Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements and Key Performance Indicators
The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
(including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and
the key performance indicators. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining
internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
and key performance indicators that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances; and complying with the Financial
Management Act 2006 and other relevant written law.
Summary of my Role
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on
the financial statements, controls and key performance indicators based on my audit. This
was done by testing selected samples of the audit evidence. I believe that the audit evidence
I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. Further
information on my audit approach is provided in my audit practice statement. Refer
"http://www.audit.wa.gov.au/pubs/Audit-Practice-Statement.pdf".
An audit does not guarantee that every amount and disclosure in the financial statements
and key performance indicators is error free. The term “reasonable assurance” recognises
that an audit does not examine all evidence and every transaction. However, my audit
procedures should identify errors or omissions significant enough to adversely affect the
decisions of users of the financial statements and key performance indicators.
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Bunbury Water Board
Financial Statements and Key Performance Indicators for the year ended 30 June 2007
Audit Opinion
In my opinion,
(i) the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly the
financial position of the Bunbury Water Board at 30 June 2007 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date. They are in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Treasurer’s Instructions;
(ii) the controls exercised by the Board provide reasonable assurance that the receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property,
and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative
provisions; and
(iii) the key performance indicators of the Board are relevant and appropriate to help
users assess the Board’s performance and fairly represent the indicated
performance for the year ended 30 June 2007.

JOHN DOYLE
ACTING AUDITOR GENERAL
21 September 2007
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